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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE 17™ JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA,
IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY

CASENO.: 12-034123 (07)

P&S ASSOCIATES, GENERAL
PARTNERSHIP, etc., et al.,

Plaintiffs,
v.
MICHAEL D. SULLIVAN, et al.,

Defendants.
/

DEFENDANT FRANK AVELLINO’S RESPONSE TO PLAINTIFFS’ MOTION TO
PRODUCE DOCUMENTS IN RESPONSE TO FIFTH REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION

Defendant, Frank Avellino, (“Avellino”) files this response to Plaintiffs’ Motion to
Produce Documents in Response to Plaintiffs’ Fifth Request to Produce (the “Motion”).
Plaintiffs’ audacity in their never ending discovery demands is limitless and evidences their
desperateness. Plaintiffs’ fifth request for production of documents from Avellino is excessive,
overreaching and redundant. Accordingly, the Motion should be denied in its entirety.

Introduction

A brief recital of the background of this action and Plaintiffs’ never ending discovery
demands is necessary to put their most recent document demand in context.

Avellino, together with a number of others, received payments of a portion of the
management fees earned by Michael Sulliyan, the general partner of the plaintiff partnerships
(the “Partnerships”). Characterizing such payments as “kickbacks”, Plaintiffs brought claims

against some but not all those who received such payments and have resolved such claims with
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all but Avellino, Michael Bienes and Steve Jacobs. Avellino does not deny receipt of such
payments and has produced a document evidencing such receipt.

Evolving through six reiterations of their complaint, Plaintiffs seek to recover from
Avellino not only the $357,790.84 in payments Plaintiffs contend were made to him by Sullivan,
but the entire $9,282,834.40 of payments made to all of the recipients, including all of the
management fees earned by Sullivan. Plaintiffs premise such relief on allegations that Avellino
was involved in the operation and management of the Partnerships, implying that all the while he
had knowledge that Madoff was a Ponzi scheme. Despite extensive discovery, Plaintiffs’
overreaching claims remain unsupported.

With this background, Plaintiffs served their fifth document request on Avellino, some of
which has beeﬁ previously requested and responded to.

Document Requests

1. Request 1.  The overreaching nature of this request is obvious on its face. It
seeks all documents for the time period January 1, 1960 to the present exchanged between
Avellino and Bienes who for decades were partners in an accounting firm and, thereafter, in
A&B, an entity that invested with Madoff that ceased operations in 1992. With regard to
documents relating to the accounting practice and A&B, the simple answer is there are none.
Avellino testified at his deposition that all such documents were shredded in 2004 when he
moved from Fort Lauderdale to Palm Beach. Avgllino testified that he didn’t need them and did

not have the room for them. This was well before the exposure of Madoff’s Ponzi scheme in

! Aside from five requests for documents, multiple sets of interrogatories and several unsuccessful attempts to seize
Avellino’s computer, Plaintiffs served a subpoena on Madoff’s trustee, Irving Picard, seeking all documents
regarding Avellino which resulted in the production of approximately 450,000 pages of documents. Plaintiffs have
also conducted the deposition of Bernard Madoff, who denied that Avellino had any knowledge of his scheme, the
deposition of Eric Lipkin, a ten year Madoff employee who had no knowledge of the scheme and Michael Sullivan,
who emphatically denied Avellino’s involvement in the operation or management of the Partnerships.
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2008 and prior to any threat of litigation against Avellino so there can be no issue of spoliation of
evidence.

With regard to communication between Avellino and Bienes since 2004, Avellino has
produced non-privileged, responsive documents.  Yet this request further seeks all
communications involving their attorneys which are clearly protected by attorney client and joint
defense/common interest privileges. A joint defense agreement has been in place since at least
the filing of Picard’s complaint against Avellino and Bienes in December, 2010.
Communications between the attorneys during this more than five year period could be in the
thousands. Generation of a privilege log for this category of documents would be onerous and
unnecessary. DLJ Mortgage Capital, Inc. v. Fox, 112 So.3d 644, 645 (Fla. 4™ DCA 2013) (“...
the failure to file a log should not be applied to categorical assertions of privilege.”); Nevin v.
Palm Beach County School Board, 958 So.2d 1003, 1008 (Fla. 1* DCA 2007) (“Waiver for
failure to file a privilege log should not apply where assertion of the privilege is not document-
specific but category specific and the category itself is plainly protected.”).

2. Request 2.  Plaintiffs’ Request 2 seeks documents which “evidence” the
common interest privilege between the parties. As stated in Avellino’s response, an oral joint
defense/common interest agreement exists between the parties. Consequently, there is no one
document “evidencing” such agreement.

Avellino’s objection to this request as vague and overly burdensome is well taken. One
could argue that all or most of the communications between the attorneys “evidences” the
existence of the agreement by the very nature of the communications. However, production of

such communication is privileged and not subject to production.
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3. Request3. This request seeks all documents “pertaining to” Avellino’s
preservation of evidence with regard to litigation brought against him. Avellino’s objection to
Request 3 is well taken; “pertaining to” is hopelessly vague and unintelligible. However,
Avellino has responded to this request that he is not aware of the existence of responsive
documents.

Plaintiffs provide a lengthy dissertation regarding a privilege claim to such request which
Avellino has not asserted and Plaintiffs’ cites to New York federal cases which do not control.
Plaintiffs falsely state that Avellino “has refused to provide any documents™; Avellino’s response
stated that he is not aware of responsive documents. Whatever relief Plaintiffs are seeking with
regard to this request should be denied.

4, Requests 4, 5, 6 and 13. These requests seek Avellino’s tax returns filed

since 1999 (Request 4); all documents including statements regarding Avellino’s checking and
savings accounts, credit cards and IRS Forms 1099 (income from self-employment earnings,
interest and dividends) and Form 1089 (apparently referring to Form 1098 which reports
mortgage interest, points or mortgage insurance paid) (Request 5); all IRS Form 4789 (currency
transaction report) and Form 4790 (report of international transportation of currency or monetary
instruments) (Request 6); and all charitable contributions made by or for Avellino’s benefit for
the past fifty-five years (Request 13).

Avellino has objected to this blunderbuss invasion of his personal finances on the
grounds that they seek constitutionally protected personal financial information of his and his
wife and that such information is irrelevant to the issues in this action and not likely to lead to

admissible evidence. Article I, Section 23, Florida Constitution; see Berkeley v. Eisen, 699
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S0.2d 789, 790 (Fla. 4™ DCA 1997); Spry v. Prof’l Emp’r Plans, 985 So.2d 1187, 1188 (Fla. 1*
DCA 2008).

Plaintiffs support their claim to this clearly privileged and irrelevant discovery on several
false and baseless arguments. Initially Plaintiffs claim such discovery is relevant “because
Avellino has disputed receiving commissions or kickbacks, and Bienes has claimed that he
received a charitable contribution.” Motion, § 19. Plaintiffs’ statement is not true. Avellino has
admitted to the receipt of payments from Sullivan and ‘produced a document reflecting such
payments. (Transcript of deposition of Frank Avellino, pp. 41, 88,}94-97; 27 Cliff, LL.C Account
Quick Report previously produced are attached collectively as Exhibit “B”). Moreover, Bienes’
claim that funds he received were a charitable contribution provides Plaintiffs no support to rifle
through Avellino’s finances. Aveliino has made no such claim.

Next Plaintiffs make the dysfunctional argument that because Avellino disagrees with
Plaintiffs’ characterization of the fees paid to him by Sullivan as “kickbacks”, receipt of funds
from other investments is relevant because “it tends to prove that Avellino was not entitled to the
kickbacks that he received.” Motion, § 20. Really? Initially, no one other than Plaintiffs
characterize Sullivan’s payments of a portion of his management fees to others as “kickbacks”.
Regardless of their characterization, Avellino admits their receipt. Whether he may have
received fees elsewhere has no relevance in this action and certainly does not enable Plaintiffs
unfettered access to Avellino’s personal financial information. Avellino’s finances are not
relevant to any disputed issue in this action.

Plaintiffs’ next strained basis justifying access to Avellino’s personal finances is that
since he and Bienes received equal payments from Sullivan and Bienes apparently claims such

payments were provided for charitable purposes, Avellino’s classification of the payments on his
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tax returns is discoverable. Motion, § 21. Aside from the complete disconnect of Plaintiffs’
argument, Avellino has testified that he reported the payments made to him by Sullivan as
income. (Ex. A, p. 94). Production of documents to ascertain what has been admitted to is
unnecessary.

Plaintiffs last basis for the production of Avellino’s tax returns is “that they would
disclose thé returns on his Madoff investments” which would be “relevant to Awvellino’s
motivation for obtaining the unlawful payments at issue in this action.” Motion, § 22. Whether
or how Avellino’s tax returns which may reflect income from other unrelated investments could
constitute evidence of the motivation for the receipt of payments at issue here (which were not
unlawful) is mystifying and unexplained. Further, “motive™ is not an element of the claims
asserted by Plaintiffs, thus, evidence of motivation is completely irrelevant. Plaintiffs have
provided no basis for their desired fishing expedition through Avellino’s finances.

5. Request 8.  This request, which essentially duplicates requests of Plaintiffs’
first document request (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “C”), seeks
communications between Avellino and seventeen individuals and entities. This is easily
resolved. Avellino stated in his response that he has no responsive documents other than
communication with Richard Wills which has been produced.

6. Request 11. This request seeks all communications between Avellino and the
general partners of the Partnerships. Assuming Michael Sullivan and Gregg Powell, the
managing partners were the general partners of the Partnerships, Avellino produced
communications he had with Sullivan and has stated that he is not aware of any communications

with Powell.
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Plaintiffs have now produced a list of 103 individuals and entities that apparently were all
general partners in the Partnerships and seek to compel Avellino to search for all
communications with each of these 103 individuals and entities from January 1, 1960 to the
present. At some point, Plaintiffs’ demands get ridiculous and this seems to be the point.
Requiring Avellino to search for communications with 103 individuals and entities over a fifty-
five year period is overly burdensome on its face. As general partners of the Partnerships,
Plaintiffs have ready access to such communication of their clients.

Moreover, Plaintiffs have already sought and obtained responses from the general
partners to this very request. For example, attached hereto as Exhibit D is defendant, Susan
Molchan’s Responses and Objections to Plaintiffs’ First Set of Interrogatories filed on January
28, 2014 in another action brought by Plaintiffs in this court entitled P&S Associates, et al. v.
Janet A. Hooker Charitable Trust, et al., Case No. 12-034121 (07). Interrogatory No. 4 seeks all
communications between Ms. Molchan and a number of individuals and entities including Frank
Avellino, to which Ms. Molchan responded that she was not personally acquainted with Frank
Avellino and identifies no such communications. Ms. Molchan is one of the 103 individuals or
entities on Plaintiffs’ list. Motion, Exhibit D. Avellino is not a party in this other action and,
therefore, is not privy to the discovery conducted by Plaintiffs in that action but it appears that
Plaintiffs served similar discovery requests on most if not all of the individuals on the list.
Seeking to have Avellino undertake this significant, redundant undertaking is unnecessary and
inappropriate. This is another glaring example of Plaintiffs’ bad faith in their conduct of this

litigation. Avellino should not be required to comply with the whim of Plaintiffs’ demands.
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7. Request 12. By this request, Plaintiffs seek all documents and communications
relating to Avellino’s investments with Madoff (for the period January 1, 1960 to the present) as
well as all documents and communications between Avellino and Ahearn & Jasco, P.A.

Plaintiffs claim the relevance of the Madoff documents is that “they relate to whether
Avellino relates to whether Avellino (sic) received the transfers at issue in good faith and
Avellino’s motivation in receiving the commissions at issue in the Complaint.” Motion, § 28.

Again, the motivation or “good faith” in the receipt of the payments at issue are not

2 Further, the overwhelming burden in searching for such

elements of Plaintiffs’ claims.
documents is obvious; Plaintiffs have received approximately 450,000 pages of documents from
Madoff’s trustee in response to its request for such documents. There is no relevance to such
documents and Avellino should not be required to search for documents already in Plaintiffs’
possession.

With regard to documents and communications between Avellino and Ahearn & Jasco,
P.A., this accounting firm did Avellino and his wife’s personal tax returns. Documents and
communications with the firm are clearly privileged and Plaintiffs’ attempt to backdoor into the
production of Avellino’s tax returns by this request is improper. While Avellino apparently
attended a meeting in 1994 with an Ahearn and Jasco accountant, which firm was the
accountants for the Partnerships, he has no documents relating to such meeting or other
communication with the accounting firm regarding the Partnerships.

8. Request 14. This request seeks all documents relating to the transfer of funds

by Sullivan or related entities to Avellino and 27 Cliff, LLC. Avellino’s responded that this

request has been previously asked and responded to. See Avellino’s Second Amended Response

2 In earlier reiterations of their complaints, Plaintiffs alleged that Avellino had actual knowledge of Madoff’s Ponzi
scheme, but such allegations were dropped in the Fifth Amended Complaint and, thus, is not an issue in this action.
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to Plaintiffs’ Fourth Request for Production of Documents is attached hereto as Exhibit “E”. A
review of these prior requests and responses mirror this request. Avellino has previously
produced documents responsive to this request. He should not be required to do so again.
Conclusion
Enough is enough. Plaintiffs’ repetitive and improper discovery demands must cease.

Plaintiffs’ motion should be denied and fees awarded Avellino.

HAILE, SHAW & PFAFFENBERGER, P.A.
Attorneys for Defendant Frank Avellino

660 U.S. Highway One, Third Floor

North Palm Beach, FL. 33408

Phone: (561) 627-8100

Fax: (561) 622-7603
gwoodfield@haileshaw.com
bpetroni@haileshaw.com

By:__ /s/ Gary A. Woodfield
Gary A. Woodfield, Esq.
Florida Bar No. 563102

A435.001/00385949 v1 9



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 16th day of February, 2016, the foregoing document is
being served on those on the attached service list by electronic service via the Florida Court E-

Filing Portal in compliance with Fla. Admin Order No. 13-49.

/s/ Gary A. Woodfield
Gary A. Woodfield, Esq.
Florida Bar No. 563102
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SERVICE LIST

THOMAS M. MESSANA, ESQ.

MESSANA, P.A.

SUITE 1400, 401 EAST LAS OLAS BOULEVARD
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33301
tmessana@messana-law.com

Attorneys for P & S Associates General Partnership

LEONARD K. SAMUELS, ESQ.
ETHAN MARK, ESQ.

STEVEN D. WEBER, ESQ.
BERGER SIGNERMAN

350 EAST LAS OLAS BOULEVARD, STE 1000
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33301
emark(@bergersingerman.com
Isamuels@bergersingerman.com
sweber@bergersingerman.com
DRT@bergersingerman.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff

PETER G. HERMAN, ESQ.

THE HERMAN LAW GROUP, P.A.

1401 E. BROWARD BLVD., STE 206

FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33301
peh@thglaw.comAttorneys for Defendants Steven F. Jacob
and Steven F. Jacob CPA & Associates, Inc.

JONATHAN ETRA, ESQ.
MARK F. RAYMOND, ESQ.
SHANE MARTIN, ESQ.
CHRISTOPHER CAVALLO, ESQ.
BROAD AND CASSEL

One Biscayne Tower, 21% Floor
2 South Biscayne Blvd.

Miami, FL 33131
mraymond(@broadandcassel.com
ssmith@broadandcassel.com
ccavallo@broadandcassel.com
jetra@broadandcassel.com
msouza(@broadandcassel.com
smartin@broadandcassel.com
Attorneys for Michael Bienes
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE
17TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR
BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

P&S ASSOCIATES, GENERAL CASE NO: 12-034123 CACE (07)
PARTNERSHIP, a Florida limited liability JUDGE: JACK TUTER
company, et al.,
Plaintiffs,
Vs,

MICHAEL D. SULLIVAN, et al.,
Defendants.
/

ORDER ON PLAINTIFFS’ RENEWED EXPEDITED MOTION TO COMPEL
DEFENDANTS FRANK AVELLINO AND MICHAEL BIENES TO PRODUCE
COMPUTERS FOR INSPECTION AND TO PRODUCE DOCUMENTS

THIS CAUSE came before the court on Plaintiffs’ Renewed Expedited Motion to Compel
Defendants Frank Avellino and Michael Bienes to Produce Computers for Inspection and to
Produce Documents. The court, having considered the motion and response, having heard
argument of counsel, having reviewed the applicable law, and being otherwise duly advised in the
premises, finds and decides as follows:

The record in the instant action reveals that on October 5, 2015, Plaintiffs filed their initial
motion to compel defendants, Frank Avellino (“Avellino”) and Michael Bienes (“Bienes”)
(collectively “Defendants™), to produce their personal computers for a forensic examination. The
initial motion was filed as a result of deposition testimony that the Defendants routinely delete e-
mail communications from their respective e-mail accounts. A hearing on Plaintiffs’ initial motion
to compel was held on October 26, 2015. Thereafter, on November 16, 2015, this Court entered
an order granting in part, and deferring in part Plaintiffs’ motion (*November 16, 2015 Order”).
Specifically, Defendants were required to: (1) preserve their computers and all e-mails during the
pendency of this action; (2) search all folders of their respective e-mail accounts; (3) produce to

Plaintiffs a timeline stating the period of time for which e-mails exists in those folders; (4) produce
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CASE NO: 12-034123 CACE (07)

a privilege log, as necessary; and (5) produce any non-privileged e-mails responsive to Plaintiffs’
requests for production. The court deferred ruling on Plaintiffs’ request that Defendants surrender
their physical personal computers for a forensic examination.

It appears that Defendants complied with this Court’s November 16, 2015 Order, and
produced documents to Plaintiffs that were located on their respective computers following a
search by counsel. On November 20, 2015, Plaintiffs filed the instant renewed motion to compel
Defendants Avellino and Bienes to produce their physical personal computers for a forensic
examination. Defendants Avellino and Bienes thereafter provided Plaintiffs with amended reports
identifying e-mail folders and documents that were not identified in the original reports. Plaintiffs
claim that the reports provided by Defendants to Plaintiffs are insufficient, and therefore, a forensic
examination of the Defendants” personal computers is necessary. On December 8, 2015,
Defendant Avellino and Bienes filed separate responses to the instant renewed motion. Also on
December 8, 2015, Defendant Avellino filed an errata sheet, correcting his September 9, 2015
deposition testimony. Specifically, Defendant Avellino asserts that his testimony that he routinely
deletes all emails was based on a misunderstanding. Rather, Defendant Avellino claims that he
routinely deletes only spam and vendor emails. On December 8, 2015, Defendants filed separate
responses to Plaintiffs’ renewed motion. A hearing on Plaintiffs’ renewed motion to compel was
held before the court on December 11, 2015.

Under Florida law, “[p]arties may obtain discovery regarding any matter, not privileged,
that is relevant to the subject matter of the pending action . . . .” Fla, R. Civ. P. 1.280 (b) (1).
Although Florida’s rules governing discovery are “broad enough to encompass requests to
examine a computer hard drive,” such request should be authorized “only in limited and strictly
controlled circumstances.” Menke v. Broward Cnty. School Bd., 916 So. 2d 8, 11 (Fla. 4th DCA

2005) (citation omitted). This is so because “unlimited access to anything on the computer would
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CASE NO: 12-034123 CACE (07)

constitute irreparable harm,” and possibly “expose confidential, privileged information to the
opposing party.” Id. (citation omitted). As such, inspections of electronic devices may be
appropriate if: “(1) there [is] evidence of destruction of evidence or thwarting of discovery; (2) the
device likely containfs] the requested information; and (3) no less intrusive means exist[] to obtain
the requested information.” Antico v. Sindt Trucking, Inc., 148 So. 3d 163, 166 (Fla. 1st DCA
2014) (emphasis added) (citations omitted).

In the instant action, in light of the searches performed by counsel .for Defendants, the
record indicates that the personal computers likely contain the requested information. However,
the court determines that Plaintiffs have failed to make an adequate showing to support a forensic
examination of Defendants’ personal computers. For instance, Plaintiffs have failed to provide
evidence that Defendants destroyed evidence or otherwise thwarted discovery, especially in light
of Defendant Avellino’s errata sheet filed on December 8, 2015. Additionally, the court
determines that Plaintiffs have failed to demonstrate the ineffectiveness of the lesser intrusive
methods employed by this Court’s November 16, 2015 Order. Therefore, Plaintiffs’ renewed
motion to compel is denied.

Accordingly, it is hereby:

ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ Renewed Expedited Motion to Compel Defendants Frank
Avellino and Michael Bienes to Produce Computers for Inspection and to Produce Documents is

I

is L/ day of

DENIED WITHOUT PREJUDICE.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers, Fort Lauderdale, Florida,

January, 2016.

JACK TU Ew e
CIRCUIY COURT JUDGE
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Copies to:

Gary A. Woodfield, Esq., Haile Shaw & Pfaffenberger, P.A., 660 U.S. Highway One, Third Floor, North Palm Beach,
FL 33408

Peter G. Herman, Esq., Tripp Scott, 110 SE 6th Street, 15th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301
Thomas M. Messana, Esq., Messana, P.A., 401 East Las Olas Blvd., Suite 1400, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301
Jonathan Etra, Esq., Broad and Cassel, One Biscayne Blvd., 21st Floor, 2 S. Biscayne Blvd., Miami, FL. 33131

Leonard K. Samuels, Esq., Berger Singerman, LLP, 350 East Las Olas Blvd., Suite 1000, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301
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Frank Avellino - Vol. I taken on 9/9/2015

Empire Legal Reporting (954)-241-1010

Page 41 Page 43
1 Q. Anddid it pay personal expenses of your 1 A No.
2 wife as well? 2 Q. Frank Avellino Grantor Retained Annuity
3 A. Not that I know of. 3 Trust Agreement Number 2, did that trust invest
4 Q. Okay. And do you know -- is 27 Cliff, LLC | 4 money with Madoff?
5 still active? 5 A No.
6§ A. No. 6 Q. So going back now to the Avellino Family
7 Q. Do you know when it became inactive? 7 Trust, the Avellino & Bienes Pension Plan & Trust,
8 A. No. 8 the Frank J. Avellino Revocable Trust Number 1, the
5 Q. Did 27 Cliff, LLC ever receive any money 9 Frank J. Avellino Grantor Retained Annuity Trust,
10 from Michael Sullivan or any of his entities? 10 the Frank J. Avellino Grantor Retained Annuity Trust
1 A. Yes. 11 Agreement Number 2, those are the ones I've
12 Q. And why did 27 CIiff, LLC receive money |2 mentioned to you so far, did those entities receive
13 from Michael Sullivan or any of his entities? 13 any money or transfers from Madoff?
14 A, Idon't recall why he sent it there. 14 A Notthat I recall.
15 Q. Was it money owed to you? 15 Q. Frank J. Avellino Revocable Trust Number 1
16 A. Idon'trecall. Maybe. 16 Under Declaration Trust Number 1 dated June 30,
17 Q. Okay. And under what circumstances would |17 1988, what is that?
18 Mr. Sullivan have owed you money? 18 A, This was all part of estate planning,
13 A. That we have to ask him. 15 50 - also by Mr. Brogan.
20 Q. Areyou familiar with the Avellino Family |2° Q. Okay. And did that entity either invest
21 Trust? 21 money in Madoff or receive any money or transfers
22 A. Yes. 22 from Madoff?
23 Q. And did the Avellino Family Trust invest 23 A. Not that I recall.
24 money in Madoff? 2¢ Q. Do yourecall -- in the Avellino Family
25 A. No.- 25 Trust Foundation, did that receive any money or
Page 42 Page 44
1 Q. Whatis the Avellino Family Trust? 1 invest any money in Madoff?
2 A. Again, it was estate planning. 2 A. Not that I recall.
3 Q. Did Mr. Brogan assist you with that? 3 Q. So just to clarify the record: Receive
4 A, Yes. 4 any money from or invest money in Madoff, the answer
5 Q. Have you heard of the Avellino & Bienes 5 is you don't recall.
6 Pension Plan & Trust? 6 A, Idon't recall
7 A. Yes. 7 Q. Soitmay have, you just don't know.
8 Q. And what is that? 8 A. 1don't know.
9 A, It's a pension plan that we had, you know. 9 Q. And we spoke about Thomas as being your
10 Q. And did that -- did that pension plan 10 son. Do you have other children?
11 invest money with Madoff? 11 A, Yes.
12 A. Idon'trecall 12 Q. And what are their names?
13 Q. FrankJ. Avellino Revocable Trust Number 1 13 A. Joseph.
14 as Amended and Restated January 26, 1990 as Amended, (14 Q. Joseph Avellino?
15 are you familiar with that? 15 A. Yes.
16 A. Yes. 16 Q. Okay.
17 Q. And did that trust invest money with 17 A. And Lorraine.
18 Madoff? 18 Q. Lorraine?
13 A. No. 19 A, L-or-r-ain-e.
20 Q. FrankJ. Avellino Grantor Retained Annuity 20 Q. Okay.
21 Trust Under Agreement dated June 24, 1992, are you 21 A. McEvoy.
22 familiar with that? 22 Q. Okay. Any other children?
23 A. Yes. 23 A. Not mine, no.
24 Q. And did that entity invest money with 2¢ Q. Okay. And is - where is Thomas located?
25 Madoff? e lives in New -- New Jersey.
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1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
i8
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 85

A. When the lease expired I think we -- 1
can't remember the date we got out. I rarely went
there, so...

Q. What did you say, you --

A. Probably, I think -- I think we had moved
out of Fort Lauderdale a long time, so I can't
recall.

Q. When you say "we had moved out of Fort
Lauderdale a long time" --

A. Nancy and I did.

Q. Okay. So justso I got the years straight
again, approximately when do you believe you leased
the office space at 65507

A. 1991

Q. Okay. And you would have moved out of
Lauderdale when?

A. 2004.

Q. 2004. So --

A. Well, we sold the house in 2000. It might
have been before that.

Q. Okay.

A. 1think we vacated the house, oh, way
before that.

Q. And so from 1991 through, approximately,
let's say, 2003, whenever it was you would have

W Lo U AW N

10
11

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Page 87

A. It was an office. I --1didn't recall
going there more than once a week.

Q. So when you're operating as Avellino &
Bienes in -- up until the time you stopped operating
as Avellino & Bienes, how many times a week would
you go to the office space --

A. Before --

Q. --at6550?

A. Say it again.

Q. While you were operating as Avellino &
Bienes, until the time that Avellino and Bienes quit
doing business, how often would you go to the office
space at 65507

A. 1can't recall, maybe once a month.

Q. Okay. Andnow you said you would go once
a week.

A. Well, when it was supposed to be starting,
it was once a week. But then afier that, it was
maybe once a month. I'm just guessing. I don't
like to guess.

Q. Allright. So after Avellino & Bienes
ceased operating, what did you next do for work?

A. Nothing.

Q. That is the last job that you had was
Avellino & Bienes?

w o ® 1 N s W N
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Page 86

moved out of Fort Lauderdale --

A. Yes.

Q. -- was that your primary work address?

A. It might have ended before. I don't
remember.

Q. But once you moved into 6550 North Federal
Highway, did that become your primary work address?

A. Yes, that was it.

Q. Okay. And when you got there you were
operating as Avellino & Bienes?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And did there ever corme a point in
time when Avellino & Bienes ceased operating?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. And when was that?

A. TIcan't recall.

Q. Would it have been after the SEC order?
Shortly after the SEC order?

A. Idon't recall.

Q. Did Avellino -- so Avellino & Bienes would
have stopped operating before 2003 and 2004.

A. Definitely.

Q. Okay. And so when that was your primary
office space up until 2003/2004 time frame, what
business were you operating out of there?

w O oW N B
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Page 88

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. How did you earn income after --
strike that.

After Avellino & Bienes ceased operating,
did you have money directly or indirectly invested
with Madoff?

A. Yes.

Q. And so you continued to get returns up
until 2008?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. What other sources of income did
you have?

A. None.

Q. That was it, all through Madoff?

A. All through Madoff.

Q. Okay. And you received some money from
S&P and P&S, and we'll get to that later. So you
had income there too, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And that came from people investing in
Madoff, right, directly --

A. From S&P?

Q. Yeah.

A. Yes.

Q. AndP&S. Okay.

Empire Legal Reporting (954)-241-1010
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instead of so-called the beginning, That's all I

Page 93 Page 95
1 let me know because we've been going for a 1 remember.
2 little while, so... 2 MR. WOODFIELD: Just answer his question.
3 THE WITNESS: Sure. 3 THE WITNESS: Well, I--
4 BY MR. SAMUELS: 4 MR. WOODFIELD: If you can.
5 Q. Aside from the Bible study groups with 5 THE WITNESS: Well, that's...
6 Mr. Sullivan over the years that met on every ¢ BY MR. SAMUELS:
7 Monday, did you also worship with Mr. Sullivan at 7 Q. Okay. So--soyou mentioned charities.
8 church? & Were you directing Michael Sullivan to make
9  A. He was in attendance when service was 9 contributions to charities on your behalf?
10 being performed. 10 A, He did it on his own on my behalf.
11 Q. Did you routinely attend church on 11 Q. On your behalf, without consulting with
12 Sundays? 12 you?
13 A. Yes. 13 A. Evidently, because I found things later on
14 Q. Did Mr. Sullivan routinely attend church 14 that were sent to different charities, especially
15 on Sundays? 15 Christ Church entities.
16 A. Not that I know of. 16 Q. And was that money that you were entitled
17 MR. SAMUELS: I think now would be a good 17 to receive?
18 time for a break. 8 A. Idon'tknow.
19 MR. WOODFIELD: Okay. 19 Q. Well, did you have an arrangement with
20 MR. SAMUELS: So why don't we do that. 20 Mr. Sullivan where you were going to be receiving
21 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Ending Disk Number 1. |21 money for any -- anything that you did in connection
22 We're off the record at 11:57 a.m. 22 with S&P or P&S?
23 (A brief break was taken.). 23 A. The only arrangement I had was his
24 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are now back on the [2¢4 arrangement, not mine.
25 record. This is the beginning of Disk 2. The 25 Q. And his arrangement was what?
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1 timeis 12:10 pm. 1 A. He was gonna -- he and Greg decided to
2 BY MR. SAMUELS: 2 give me and Mr. Bienes money. It's his --
3 Q. Ready? 3 Q. For what?
4 A, Yes. 4 A --doing--
5 Q. Okay. We spoke earlier of receiving 5 For accounts that were with him,
6 payments at Cliff 27 into S. Sullivan. What was 6 evidently.
7 your understanding in terms of why CLff 27 was 7 Q. For accounts that you brought to S&P and
8 receiving money from S&P or P&S or Michael Sullivan | 8 P&S?
9 or one of his entities? 9  A. Whether I brought, whether it had my name
10 A. I--the only indication I have is it 10 on it, that's another question. If1 brought it,
11 gtarted in 2004, and I think it was charitable -- 11 it's another story. But I didn't know if I brought
12 charitable for charities. So I -- that's the only 12 it, But the questions [sic] were earmarked in
13 thing I could remember. I never asked for it. 13 Bienes's name and my name.
14 Q. He sent money to Cliff 27 for charities? 14 Q. Accounts that were earmarked for your name
15 A. He sent to money for 27 Cliff -- 15 and Bienes's name and you received money.
16 Q. 27 CLff. 16 A. Yes.
17 A. --for -- not for charities, but he 17 Q. And that -- some of that money made its
18 decided to send it there. In the past it was going 18 way to 27 Cliff?
19 to charities, to different entities. 12 A. All of it did.
20 Q. And what is the "it"? 20 Q. Allofitdid. Okay.
21 A. Monies that he was sending to Christ 21 And when that money arrived at 27 CIiff,
22 Church, to other entities that were charitable that 22 did you ever ask Mr. Sullivan why he was sending
23 he decided to do. Because the more I looked at it, 23 money to 27 ClLiff?
24 when I saw this, I said, why did it start in 2004 24 A. No.
25 25

Q. 27 Cliff just accepted the money?
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A. It's a gift. Why not take it?

Q. It's a gift.

A. Well, I would assume so. If somebody
gives you money, you take it.

Q. Was it declared as a gift on the tax
return?

A. No. Itwas a fee.

Q. Declared as income.

A. Asfee.

Q. A fee for what?

A. For accounts that Madoff -- that was
directed from Madoff to S&P and earmarked for Frank
and Michael.

Q. And what were the criteria which would
have an account earmarked for Frank and Michael?

A. Idon't know, each one was different.

Q. What were -- why were some -- do you know
why any of the accounts were earmarked to you?

A. He associated them with -- with me.

Q. And why did he associate them with you?

A. That's for him to answer. I don't--1
don't know.

Q. Did you have an understanding with
Mr. Sullivan or Mr. Powell that accounts that you
were able to bring to S&P or P&S to invest with

15
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Q. Did you have an arrangement with either
Mr. Sullivan or Mr. Powell that they would pay you a
fee in connection with accounts that you would bring
to P&S or S&P?

I have no idea, no.

No.

No.

Did you bring accounts to S&P or P&S?

I didn't bring any accounts to S&P or P&S.
None?

None.

Did you recommend any former investors of
Avellmo & Bienes to invest with S&P or P&S?

A. Imay have.

Q. And did any of those investors you
recommended invest in P&S or S&P, actually invest in
S&P or P&S?

A. Yes, they did.

Q. And who do you recall being amongst those
people?

A. Well, if you give me the list, I'll go
over the list.

Q. Okay. And were you then paid by S&P or
P&S a fee for bringing those people in that you
recommended?

OPOPOPOP

W O 9 U W N R

NN NNRE KB B BB R R
W N RFPF O WL ®I& ;M & W L o

24
25

Page 98

- Madoff that you would get paid a percent on?

A. Thad no arrangements with them.

Q. No arrangements.

A. Nope.

Q. You just got paid money.

A. Yes.

Q. And it wasn't a gift.

A. No.

Q. Itwasafee.

A. Ttwas a fee.

Q. And when you received the money you

understood it to be a fee.

A. Itwas a fee.

Q. My question is: When you received the
money, did you understand it to be a fee?

A. Ihad to earmark it on a tax return, so I
called it a fee.

Q. Youcalled it a fee.

A. Right.

Q. Okay. And when you were calling -- when
you were telling the government it was a fee, it was
a fee for what?

A. Idon'tknow. Justa fee.

Q. Just a fee.

A. Report it to the IRS, and they're happy.
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A. At that point, yes, by them. By Greg and
by Michael.

Q. And how was that fee calculated, do you
know?

A. Well, he had sent statements that said
50 percent of fees, half to Mr. Bienes, half to me;
which means 50 percent of 100 percent.

Q. And so you would get statements?

A. He would send a -- a summary, if you will.

Q. Okay. And did you ever tell him something
to the effect of why are you paying me?

A. Did I ever ask him?

Q. Yes.

A. No.

Q. Okay. So you got a summary and you were
paid a fee, based upon people who you referred into
the partnership.

A. People I may have spoken to. Did I refer
them to them? I'm not so sure I referred them in.

Q. Spoken to about their ability to invest in
S&P and P&S, and that their money would then be
invested in Madoff.

A. Each one was different, so I can't give a
broad answer on that.

Q. You mentioned that you delete e-mails
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
17TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND
FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

Case No: 12-034123(07)
Complex Litigation Unit

P&S ASSOCIATES, GENERAL PARTNERSHIP,
a Florida limited partnership; and S&P
ASSOCIATES, GENERAL PARTNERSHIP, a
Florida limited partnership, PHILIP VON KAHLE
as Conservator of P&S ASSOCIATES, GENERAL
PARTNERSHIP, a Florida limited partnership, and
S&P ASSOCIATES, GENERAL PARTNERSHIP,
a Florida limited partnership

Plaintiffs,
v.

MICHAEL D. SULLIVAN, ao individual,
STEVEN JACOB, an individual, MICHAEL D.
SULLIVAN & ASSOCIATES, INC., a Florida
corporation, STEVEN F. JACOB, CPA &
ASSOCIATES, INC., a Florida -corporation,
FRANK AVELLINO, an individual, MICHAEL
BIENES, an individual, KEL.CO FOUNDATION,
INC., a Florida Non Profit Corporation, VINCENT
T. KELLY, an individual, VINCENT BARONE, an
individual, EDITH and SAM ROSEN, individuals,
PREMIER MARKETING SERVICES, INC., a
Florida Corporation, and SCOTT HOLLOWAY, an
individual,

Defendants.
/

PLAINTIFFS’ FIRST REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION
OF DOCUMENTS TO DEFENDANT FRANK AVELLINO

Pursuant to Rule 1.350 of the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiffs, P&S

Associates, General Partnership (“P&S”), S&P Associates, General Partnership (“S&P”) and
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Philip Von Kahle as Conservator on behalf of P&S and S&P (“Conservator”) (collectively and
individually referred to as, the “Partnerships” or “Plaintiffs”), by and through their undersigned
attomeys, request that Defendant Frank Avellino (“Defendant”), produce the following described
documents and tangible things in accordance with Rule 1.350 and the definitions and instructions
stated below, at the offices of Berger Singerman, 350 East Las Olas Blvd, Suite 1000, Fort
Lauderdale, FL 33131, within 30 days of service of this Request.

DEFINITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS

The following deﬁnitions shall apply to this Request:

A, “You”, “Your”, or “Defendant” as used herein means Defendant Frank Avellino,
and includes any and all agents, employees, servants, officers, directors, attorneys and any other
person or entfity acting or purporting to act on his behalf, or any other entity or person under the
direct control of Frank Avellino.

B. “P&S” as used herein means Plaintiff P&S Associates, General Partnership, and
includes any and all agents, employees, servants, officers, directors, attorneys and any other
person or entity acting or purporting to act on its behalf.

C. “S&P” as used herein means Plaintiff S&P Associates, General Partnership, and
includes any and all agents, employees, servants, officers, directors, attomeys and any other
person or entity acting or purporting to act on its behalf.

D. “Person” as used herein means any natural person or any entity, including without
limitation any individual, firm, corporation, company, joint venture, trust, tenancy, association,
partnership, business, agency, department, burean, board, commission, or any other form of
public, private or legal entity. Any reference herein to any public or private company,
partnership, association, or other entity include such entity’s subsidiaries and affiliates, as well as
the present and former directors, officers, employees, attorneys, agents and anyone acting on
behalf of, at the direction of, or under the control of the entity, its subsidiaries or its affiliates.

E. “Documents” shall mean the original or copies of any tangible written, typed,
printed or other form of recorded or graphic matter of every kind or description, however
produced or reproduced, whether mechanically or electronically recorded, draft, final original,
reproduction, signed or unsigned, regardless of whether approved, signed, sent, received,
redrafted, or executed, and whether handwritten, typed, printed, photostated, duplicated, carbon
or otherwise copied or produced in any other manner whatsoever. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, “documents” shall include correspondence, letters, telegrams,
telexes, mailgrams, memoranda, including inter-office and intra-office memoranda, memoranda
for files, memoranda of telephone or other conversations, including meetings, invoices, reports,
receipts and statements of account, ledgers, notes or notations, notes or memorandum attached to



or to be read with any document, booklets, books, drawings, graphs, charts, photographs, phone
records, electronic tapes, discs or other recordings, computer programs, prinfouts, data cards,
studies, analysis and other data compilations from which information can be obtained. Copies of
documents, which are not identical duplications of the originals or which contain additions to or
deletions from the originals or copies of the originals if the originals are not available, shall be
considered to be separate documents.

“Documents™ shall also include all electronic data storage documents including but not
limited to e-mails and any related attachments, electronic files or other data compilations which
relate to the categories of documents as requested below. Your search for these electronically
stored documents shall include all of your computer hard drives, floppy discs, compact discs,
backup and archival tapes, removable media such as zip drives, password protected and
encrypted files, databases, electronic calendars, personal digital assistants, proprietary software
and inactive or unused computer disc storage areas.

F. “Communications” shall mean any oral or written statement, dialogue, colloquy,
discussion or conversation and, also, means any transfer of thoughts or ideas between persons by
means of documents and includes any transfer of data from one focation to another by electronic
or similar means.

G. “Related to” shall mean, directly or indirectly, refer to, reflect, mention, describe,
pertain to, arise out of or in connection with or in any way legally, logically, or factually be
connected with the matter discussed.

H. As used herein, the conjunctions “and” and “or” shall be interpreted in each
instance as meaning “and/or” so as to encompass the broader of the two possible constructions,
and shall not be interpreted disjunctively so as to exclude any information or documents
otherwise within the scope of any request.

L Any pronouns used herein shall include and be read and applied as to encompass
the alternative forms of the pronoun, whether masculine, feminine, neuter, singular or plural, and
shall not be interpreted so as to exclude any information or documents otherwise within the
scope of any request.

1. Unless otherwise specified herein, the time frame for each request is from and
including January 1, 1992 to the present.

K. If you contend that you are entitled to withhold any responsive document(s) on
the basis of privilege or other grounds, for each and every such document specify:
1. The type or nature of the document;
ii. The general subject matter of the document;
i1i. The date of the document;
iv. The author, addressee, and any other recipient(s) of the document; and
V. The basis on which you contend you are entitled to withhold the
document.



L. If you assert that any document sought by any request is protected against
disclosure as the attorney’s work product doctrine or by the attorney-client privilege, you shall
provide the following information with respect to such document:

1. the name and capacity of the person or persons who prepared the
documents;
ii. the name and capacity of all addresses or recipients of the original or

copies thereof;

1. the date, if any, borne by the document;

iv. a brief description of its subject matter and physical size;
\A the source of the factual information from which such document was
prepared; and
vi. the nature of the privilege claimed.
M. You must produce all documents within your case, custody or control that are

responsive to any of these requests. A document is within your care, custody or control if you
have the right or ability to secure the document or a copy thereof from any other person having
physical possession thereof.

N. If you at any time had possession, custody or control of a document called for
under this request and if such document has been lost, destroyed, purged, or is not presently in
your possession, custody or control, you shall describe the document, the date of its loss,
destruction, purge, or separation from possession, custody or control and the circumstances
surrounding its loss, destruction, purge, or separation from possession, custody or control.

0. All documents produced pursuant hereto are to be produced as they are kept in the
usual course of business and shall be organized and labeled (without permanently marking the
item produced) so as to correspond with the categories of each numbered request hereof,

P. When appropriate, the singular form of a word should be interpreted in the plural
as may be necessary to bring within the scope hereof any documents which might otherwise be
construed to be outside the scope hereof.

DOCUMENTS REQUESTED

1. All documents exchanged between Defendant and S&P; P&S; Michael D.
Sullivan; Steven Jacob; Michael D. Sullivan & Associates, Inc., a Florida Corporation; Steven F.
Jacob, CPA & Associates, Inc.; Gregg Powell; Kelco Foundation, Inc. a Florida Non Profit
Corporation; Vincent T. Kelly; Vincent Barone; Edith Rosen; Sam Rosen; Premier Marketing
Services, Inc., a Florida Corporation; Grosvenor Partners, 1.td.; Avellino Family Foundation,

Inc.; Mayfair Ventures; Kenn Jordan Foundation; Elaine Ziffer; James & Valerie Bruce Judd;

1}

4.



Roberta and Vania Alves; Janet A. Hooker Charitable Trust; Gilbert Kahn and Donald Kahan;
Carone Family Trust; Carone Gallery, Inc. Pension Trust; Carone Marital Trust #1 UTD 1/26/00;
Carone Marital Trust #2 UTD 1/26/00; Matthew D. Carone Revocable Trust; James A. Jordan
Living Trust; Fernando Esteban; Margaret E.K. Esteban; James A. Jordon; Marvin Seperson;
and/or Scott Holloway; and any partner of P&S and/or S&P.

2. All documents exchanged between Avellino & Bienes and S&P; P&S: Michael D.
Sullivan; Steven Jacob; Michael D. Sullivan & Associates, Inc., a Florida Cprporation; Steven F.
Jacob, CPA & Associates, Inc.; Gregg Powell; Kelco Foundatidn; Inc. a Florida Non Proﬁt.
Corporation; Vincent T. Kelly; Vincent Barone; Edith Rosen; Sam Rosen; Premier Marketing
Services, Inc., a Florida Corporation; Grosvenor Partners, Ltd.; Avellino Family Foundation,
Inc.; Mayfair Ventures; Kenn Jordan Foundation; Elaine Ziffer; Michael Bienes; Richard Wills;
and/or Scott Holloway; and any partner of P&S and/or S&P,

3. All documents related to communications between Defendant and S&P; P&S;
Michael D. Sullivan; Steven Jacob; Michael D. Sullivan & Associates, Inc., a Florida
Corporation; Steven F. Jacob, CPA & Associates, Inc.; Frank Avellino; Gregg Powell; Kelco
Foundation, Inc. a Florida Nen Profit Corporation; Vincent T. Kelly; Vincent Barone; Edith
Rosen; Sam Rosen; Premier Marketing Services, Inc., a Florida Corporation, Michael Bienes;
Scott Holloway; Richard Wills and any partner of P&S and/or S&P.

4, All documents related to any payments, transfers of funds, and/or compensation
that You received from Avellino & Bienes; S&P; P&S; Michael D. Sullivan; Steven Jacob;
Michael D. Sullivan & Associates, Inc., a Florida Corporation; Steven F. Jacob, CPA &
Associates, Inc.; Frank Avellino; Gregg Powell; Sullivan & Powell; Kelco Foundation, Inc. a

Florida Non Profit Corporation; Vincent T. Kelly: Vincent Barone; Edith Rosen; Sam Rosen;



Premier Marketing Services, Inc., a Florida Corporation, Scott Holloway; and/or any partner of
P&S and/or S&P.

3. All documents that refer to or reflect the transactions and/or events alleged in the
Amended Complaint in this action.

6. All documents that reflect Your receipt of any of the Kickbacks alleged in the
Amended Complaint in this action.

7. Unless such documer_lts have been produced in respons_e-to a previous request, all
doéuments concerning the factual baéis for any affirmative defensertllle{t Yoﬁ will assert in thisr
action.

8. All documents related to Avellino & Bienes’ involvement with S&P and/or P&S,
and/or the involvement of any partners in P&S and/or S&P with Avellino & Bienes.

9. Any and all correspondence between You and any of cumrent and/or former
partner of P&S and/or S&P; including but not limited to any correspondence between You and
any of the named Defendants in this action.

10.  All commumications made regarding investment advice and/or financial

performance of S&P and P&S to partners of the P&S and/or S&P and/or potential investors in

P&S and/or S&P.
11.  Any and all documents relating to your investment or decision to invest in P&S
and/or S&P.

12. Any and all documents and communications concerning the suitability of
investment in P&S and/or S&P regardless of whether those persons or entities who received such

communications or documents actually invested in S&P and/or P&S.



13.  Any and all documents relating to communications between You and/or Avellino
& Bienes and any entity whose name includes the term “Holy Ghost.”

14.  Any documents which evidence or relate to any transfers made to any entity in
which you hold an interest, and any subsequent transfers thereafter that relate to P&S and/or
S&P.

15.  Any and all documents and correspondence concerning You and the Securities
and Exchange Commission, the Florida Office of Financial Regulation, and any other
Governmental Regulatory Agency, including but not limifed to any internal memorandum
concerning compliance with regulations promulgated by such entities.

16.  All documents evidencing or referencing that You and/or Avellino & Bienes were
active in the management of the Partnerships.

17.  All documents evidence or relating to any transfers made to Reverend Richard
Wills and/or the Christ Church United Methodist in Ft. Launderdale by You or on Your Behalf, or
by Avellino & Bienes, or on Avellino & Bienes’ behalf.

18.  All correspondence between You and Reverend Richard Wills.

19.  All documents that relate to any contact with, or communications between You
and/or Avellino & Bienes and any partoers of P&S and/or S&P.

Respectfully submitted,

BERGER SINGERMAN LLP
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

350 East Las Olas Blvd, Suite 1000
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301
Telephone:  (954) 525-9900
Facsimile:  (954) 523-2872

By: s/Leonard K. Samuels

Leonard K. Samuels
Florida Bar No. 501610




Isamuels @bergersingerman.com
Etan Mark

Florida Bar No. 720852

emark @bergersingerman.com
Steven D. Weber

Florida Bar No. 47543
sweber@bergersingerman,com

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been served via

Electronic Mail and U.S. Mail this 29th day of January, 2014, upon the following:

Smith v. Sullivan
Case No. 12-034123 (04)

Peter G. Herman, Esq.

Tripp Scott

110 SE 6™ Street

15™ Floor

Fort Landerdale, FL 33301

Tel.: 954-525-7500

Fax.: 954-761-8475

pgh@trippscott.com

Attorneys for Steven Jacob; Steven F. Jacob
CPA & Associates, Inc.

Paul V. DeBianchi, Esq.

Paul V. DeBianchi, P.A.

111 S.E. 12" Street

Fort Lauderdale, FI. 33316

Tel.: 954-764-6133

Fax.: 954-764-6131

Debianchi236 @bellsouth.net

Attorneys for Father Vincent P. Kelly; Kelco
Foundation, Inc.

Gary A. Woodfield, Esq.
Haile, Shaw & Pfaffenberger, P.A.

Thomas M. Messana, Esq.

Messana, P.A.

401 East Las Olas Boulevard, Suite 1400
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

Tel.: 954-712-7400

Fax: 954-712-7401
tmessana@messana-law.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

Mark F. Raymond, Esq.
mraymond @broadandcassel.com
Jonathan Etra, Esq.
jetra@broadandcassel.com
Christopher Cavallo, Esq.
ccavallo@broadandcassel.com
Broad and Cassel

One Biscayne Boulevard, 21st Floor
2 S. Biscayne Boulevard

Miami, FL 33131

Tel.: 305-373-9400

Fax.: 305-373-9443

Attorneys for Michael Bienes

Robert J. Hunt, Esg.
Debra D. Klingsberg, Esq.



660 U.S. Highway One, Third Floor
North Palm Beach, FLL 33408

Tel.: 561-627-8100

Fax.: 561-622-7603

gwoodfiled @haileshaw.com
bpetroni @haileshaw.com

eservices @haileshaw.com
Attorneys for Frank Avellino

Matthew Triggs, Esq.

Andrew Thomson, Esq.

Proskauer Rose LLP

2255 Glades Road, Suite 421 Atrinm
Boca Raton, FLL 33431

Tel: 561-241-7400

Fax: 561-241-7145

Attorneys for Defendants Kelco Foundation,

Inc. and Vincent T. Kelly
mtriggs @proskaner.com
athomson @proskaver.com
florida.litigation @proskauer.com

Hunt & Gross, P.A.

185 Spanish River Boulevard
Suite 220

Boca Raton, FL. 334314230
Tel: 561-997-9223

Fax: 561-089-8993
Attorneys for Defendant Scott W. Holloway
bobhunt@hunteross.com
dklingsbere @hunteross.com
eService @huntgross.com
Sharon @huntgross.cont

By: s/Leonard K. Samuels




Filing # 9652487 Electronically Filed 01/28/2014 10:28:49 PM

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
17™ JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND
FOR BROWARD COUNTY,
FLORIDA

Case No: 12-034121(07)
Complex Litigation Unit

P&S ASSOCIATES, GENERAL PARTNERSHIP,
etal,

Plaintiffs,
Vs.

JANET A. HOOKER CHARITABLE TRUST,
et al,

Defendants.
/

DEFENDANT SUSAN MOL.CHAN’S RESPONSES AND OBJECTIONS TO
TIFF’S FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES

Pursuant to Florida Rule of Civil Procedure 1.340, Defendant SUSAN E.

MOLCHAN hereby responds and/or objects to Plaintiff’s First Set of Interrogatories.
GENERAL RESPONSES AND OBJECTIONS

1.  Defendant submits these responses without conceding the relevancy or materiality
of the subject matter of any interrogatory.
2. Defendant objects to those interrogatories that seck information neither relevant to
this action, nor réasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.
3. Defendant objects to those interrogatories that seek information exempt from
discovery by'virtue of its inclusion in any of the following categories:

a. Information that embodies or discloses confidential communication between

Defendant and its counsel;

EXHIBIT
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b. Information that represents the work product of attorneys for Defendant in this
or related actions or which otherwise reflects the mental impressions, conclusions,
opinions or legal theories of those attorneys or their agents; and
¢. Information that has been compiled in anticipation of litigation or for trial by or
on behalf of Defendant or its counsel.
4.  Defendant objects to those interrogatories that are duplicative or cumulative or as to
which information may be obtained from another source that is more convenient, less
burdensome and less expensive.
5. Defendant objects to those interrogatories that are unnecessarily burdensome and
oppressive.
6.  Defendant objects to all interrogatories insofar as they call for information about
any other non~discoverable matters.

7.  Defendant reserves the right to supplement its responses as discovery proceeds.

RESPONSES TO SPECIFIC INTERROGATORIES

Interrogatory No. 1: Identify all persons with knowledge of any of the facts alleged in
the Amended Complaint and/or in any pleadings (including without limitation any
motions) You filed with the Court, including the specific matters of which each such
person has knowledge. '

Response:

My joint account holder, Tom Whiteman, and I have knowledge about our joint account
at P&S Associates, General Partnership (“P&S”). Michael Sullivan should have
knowledge about that, P&S generally and its dealings with Bernard L. Madoff Investment
Securities, LLC (“BLMIS”) specifically. The attorneys of record for P&S should have
knowledge of the legal proceedings between BLMIS trustee Irving Picard and P&S.

Interrogatory No. 2: State all facts and/or circumstances under which You received any
payments, distributions, and/or transfers of funds from P&S.

Response:

We elected to reinvest profits at P&S, so we did not receive regular distributions.
Instead, we only received payments and/or distributions when we specifically requested



them. The amounts and timing of such payments and/or distributions are reflected in the
documents we will produce in response to the Plaintiff’s requests.

Interrogatory No. 3: State all facts and/or circumstances under which You made any
payments, distributions, and/or transfers of funds to P&S.

Response:

We had been note holders with Avellino & Bienes, who referred us to Sullivan & Powell
(after Avellino & Bienes refunded our note investment) if we wished to continue to invest
indirectly in the “hedge fund” that we now understand to have been BLMIS. We
contacted Sullivan & Powell and opened an account with them in P&S, into which we
made capital contributions from time to time. The amount and timing of such capital
contributions are reflected in the documents we will produce in response to the Plaintiff’s
requests.

Interrogatory No. 4: Identify all communications between Defendant and P&S; Michael
D. Sullivan; Steven Jacob; Michael D, Sullivan & Associates, Inc., a Florida Corporation;
Steven F. Jacob, CPA & Associates, Inc.; Frank Avellino; Michael Bienes; Kelco
Foundation, Inc. a Florida Non Profit Corporation; and/or Vincent T. Kelly. For each
communication identified, state all facts andfor circumstances surrounding that
communication.

Response:

We periodically received written Activity/Status reports from Sullivan & Powell, on
behalf of P&S, regarding our account and we sent written requests to them when we
wished to make withdrawals and when we wished to close our account. There may have
been a few phone calls to them to check on the status of withdrawals, but 1 do not recall
specifics. Not acquainted with Steven Jacob or his firm. Not personally acquainted with
Michael Sullivan, Frank Avellino or Michael Bienes. Never heard of Kelco Foundation.
I am acquainted with Vincent Kelly and had a general awareness that he had participated
in the Avellino & Bienes note program and in one of the Sullivan & Powell partnerships,
but I did not get investment advice from him about them and he did not solicit me to
invest in them.

Interrogatory No. 5: State all facts and/or circumstances that led to any investment by
You in P&S.

Response:

See Response to Interrogatory No. 3

Interrogatory No. 6: State all facts and/or circumstances that indicate that Plaintiffs
failed to file the Complaint within the time reguired under the applicable statutes of
limitations for each cause of action asserted in the Amended Complaint.

Response:

We completed closing our account with and withdrawing from P&S in 1999 and were no
longer partners in P&S after that time, but the Complaint was not filed until late 2012.



Interrogatory No. 7: Were you aware of any payment, distribution, and/or transfer of
funds received by any partner of P&S prior to the filing of the Complaint in this action?
For each payment, distribution, and/or transfer of funds to a partner of P&S that You
were aware of prior to the filing of the Complaint in this action, identify the name of the
partner who received that payment, distribution, and/or transfer of funds, when You
became aware of that payment, distribution, andfor fransfer of funds, and the
circumstances under which You became aware of it.

Response: :
I only know abont the payments and/or distributions we received from P&S. Otherwise,
see Response to Interrogatory No. 2.

Interrogatory No. 8: Prior to the filing of the Complaint in this action, identify all
partners of P&S that were aware of any payment, distribution, and/or transfer of funds
that You received from P&S. For each partner of P&S identified, state when You believe
that partner of P&S became aware of the payment, distribution, and/or transfer of funds
that You received from P&S and the circumstances under which that partner of P&S
became aware of it.

Response:

Other than my joint account holder Tom Whiteman, the only other partner at P&S that
would have had contemporaneous knowledge of the payments and/or distributions we
received from P&S would have been the managing general partners, Sullivan & Powell.
There may have been other partners who gained access to that information, but I do not
bave knowledge regarding that. Otherwise, see Response 1o Interrogatory No. 2,

Interrogatory No. 9: Identify all persons who supplied information used in answering
these interrogatories. For each person idenfified, state the interrogatory for which the
person furnished the answer or supplied the information incorporated in the answer, and
the source of the person’s answer or information.

Response:

My joint account holder Tom Whiteman assisted me in answering these Interrogatories in
as much as he has generally the same knowledge about our account that I possess.

Interrogatory No. 10: Identify by name, address, phone number and e-mail address any
person expected to testify at trial in this action, for any purpose.

Response:

Other than my joint account holder, Tom Whiteman, and I, it has not been determined
what witnesses we will call at trial,

Interrogatory No. 11: Please set out the facts and subject matter on which each person
identified in response to Interrogatory No. 10 above is expected to testify.

Rﬁsponse:

See Responses to Interrogatories Nos. 2, 3,4 and 6.

Interrogatory No. 12: Identify any investment or accounting advice that You received in
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relation to any investment by You in P&S.
Response:

Except as indicated in Response to Intcrrbgatory No. 3, we did not receive any such
advice. :

Interrogatory No. 13: Please state the nature of the investments made by the
Partnerships, when you first became aware of the nature of the investments made by the
Partnerships, and the facts and circumstances uader which you first became aware of the
nature of the investments made by the Partnerships.

Response:

My understanding was that P&S invested in the same “hedge fund” utilized by Avellino
& Bienes, which was described in general fashion in literature provided by them, (to be
produced in response to the Plaintiff’s request). :

Interrogatory No. 14: Why did you refuse to comply with the Demand Letter You
received in November of 2012 and the Demand Letter that You received in October
20137

Response:
Advice of counsel.

Interrogatory No. 15: Please state all of the facts and/or circumstances concering your
decision to not comply with the Demand Letter You that You received in November of
2012 from Margaret Smith and the Demand Letter that You received in October 2013.

Response:

See Response to Interrogatory No. 14.

Interrogatory No. 16: Please state all the terms of your investment in P&S.
Response: |

: As far as I know the “terms” of the investment were as set forth in the Partnership
> Agreement we were provided, a copy of which will be produced in respomse to the
Plaintiff’s request.

,éusan E. Molchan

STATE OF MARYLAND )
)BS:
COUNTY OF (o4 |4

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared Susan E. Molchan who,
being first duly sworn, deposes and states that the amswers to the foregoing
Interrogatories are true and correct.



SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me, this % day of Jﬂ&ékéﬁj‘j },2014,
by UL My -, who is

produced &D@Lﬁé Ll adiduit

NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF MARYLAND
MORTGOMERY COUNTY
Iy Commission Expires August 20, 2018

~ personally known to me or has

ommission Expires:

Notary Public, State of Commission No.




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFIES that on the 28th day of January 2014

a true and correct copy of the foregoing was SENT VIA E-MAIL to:

LEONARD X, SAMUELS, Esq., ETAN MARK, Esq.,and STEVEN D. WEBER, Esq.,
¢/o Berger Singerman, Attorneys for Plaintiffs, 350 East Las Olas Boulevard, Suite 1000,
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301: Isamuels@bergersingerman.com;
emark @bergersingerman.com; sweber@bergersingerman.con;
DRT @bergersingerman.com; VLeon@bergersingerman.com; ERIC N. ASSOULINE,
Esq., ¢/o Assouline & Berlowe, P.A., Attorneys for Ersica P. Gianna, 213 E. Sheridan
Street, Sunite 3, Damia Beach, Florida 33004: ena@assoulineberlowe.com; and
ah@assoulineberiowe com; JULIAN H. KREEGER, Esq., Attorneys for James Bruce
Judd and Valeria Judd, 2665 S. Bayshore Drive, Suite 220-14, Miami, Florida 33133-
5402; juliankreeger@gmail com; JOSEPH P. KLAPHOLZ, Esq., Attorney for Abraham
Newman, Rita Newman & Gertrude Gordon, c¢/o Joseph P. Klapholz, P.A., 2500
Hollywood Boulevard, Suite 212, Hollywood, Florida 33020: jklap@klapholzpa.com;
dml@klapholzpa.com; PETER G. HERMAN, Esq., ¢/o0 Tripp Scoft Law Offices, 110
S.E. Sixth Street, Suite 1500, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301: PGH@trippscott.com;
MICHAEL C. FOSTER, Esq., and ANNETTE M, URENA, Esq., c/o Daniels Kashtan,
4000 Ponce de Leon Blvd., Suite 800, Coral Gables, Florida 33146: Mfoster@dkdr.com;
aurena@dkdr.com; MARC S. DOBIN, Esq. ¢/o Dobin Law Group, 500 University Blvd.,
Suite 205, Jupiter, Florida 33458 service@DobinLaw .com; THOMAS M. MESSANA,
Esq., and BRETT LIEBERMAN, Esq., c/o Messana P.A., 401 East Las Olas Blvd., Suite
1400, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301: trnessana@messana-law .com;
blieberman@messana-law.com; RICHARD T. WOLFE, Esq., ¢/o Bunnell & Woulfe,
P.A., One Financial Plaza, Suite 1000, 100 S.E. Third Avenue, Fort Lauderdale, Florida
33394: Pleadings RTW@bunnellwoulfe.com; THOMAS L. ABRAMS, Esq., 1776 N,
Pine Island Road, Suite 309, Plantation, Florida, 33322: tabrams@tabramslaw.com;
DANIEL W. MATLOW, Esq., Attorney for Defendant (Herbert Irwig Revocable Trust},
Emerald Lake Corporate Park, 3109 Stirling Road , Suite 101, Fort Lauderdale, FL. 33312
dmatlow@danmatlow.com, assistant@danmatlow.com; DOMENICA FRASCA, Esq.,
Mayersohn Law Group, P.A., Attorney for Francis J. Mahoney, Jr. PR Estate of May
Ellen Nickens, 101 N.E. Third Avenue, Suite 1250, Fort Lauderdale, FL. 33301
dfrasca@mayersohnlaw.com; MARIAELENA GAYO- GUITIAN, Esq., Genovese
Joblove & Battista, P.A., Attorneys for Festus & Helen Stacy Foundation, Inc., 200 East
Broward Boulevard, Suite 1110, Fort Lauderdale, FL. 33301 mguitian@gjb-law.com;
ROBERT J. HUNT, Esq., Hunt & Gross, PA, Attorneys for Hampton Financial Group,
Inc., 185 Spanish River Boulevard, Suite 220, Boca Raton, FL 33431-4230
eservice@huntgross.com, bobhunt@huntgross.com, Sharon@huntgross.com; JASON S.
OLETSKY, Esq. Akerman Senterfitt, Attorney for Kathleen Walsh, Las Olas Centre II,
350 E., las ©Olas Boulevard, Suite 1600, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301
jason.oletsky@akerman.com, Ashleysawyer@akerman.com; CARL F. SCHOEPPL,
Esq., Schoeppl & Burkem P.A., Attorneys for But Moss, 4651 North Federal Highway,




Boca Raton, FL 33431 carl@schoepplburke.com; WILLIAM G. SALIM, JR., Esq.
Moskowitz, Mandell, Salim & Simowitz, Attorneys for Wayne Horwitz, 800 Corporate
Drive, Suite 510, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33334 wsalim@mmsslaw.com; RYON M.
MCCABE, Esq., McCabe Rabin, PA, Attorney for Catherine Smith, Centurion Tower,
1601 Forum Place, Suite 505, West Palm Beach, FL 33401 rmccabe@mccaberabin.com,
janet@mccaberabin.cont, efrederick@mceaberabin.com; and THOMAS J. GOODWIN,
Esq., McCarter English, LLP, Attorneys for Defendants Holy Ghost Fathers, Compassion
Fund, Holy Ghost Fathers Hg-Mombasa, Holy Ghost Fathers International Fund #1, Holy
Ghost Fathers International Fund #2, And Holy Ghost Fathers Hg-Ireland/Kenema, 4
Gateway Center 100 Mulberry Street, Newark, NJ 07102 tgoodwin@mccarter.com.

Michael R. Casey, Esq.
Attorney for Molchan Defendants
1831 NE 38" Street, #707
Oakland Park. FL. 33308

- Tel. (954) 444-2780
Email: mcasey666@ gmail.com

st
Michael R. Casey, Florida Bar No. 217727




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE 17™ JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA,
IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY

CASE NO.: 12-034123 (07)
P&S ASSOCIATES, GENERAL
PARTNERSHIP, etc., et al.,
Plaintiffs,
V.
MICHAEL D. SULLIVAN, et al.,

Defendants.
/

DEFENDANT, FRANK AVELLINO’S SECOND AMENDED RESPONSE TO
PLAINTIFFS’ FOURTH REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS

Defendant, Frank Avellino, files this second amended response to Plaintiffs’ Fourth
Request for Production of Documents dated January 23, 2015 (the “Request™) as follows:

GENERAL OBJECTIONS

Defendant objects to the characterization of the Request as continuing in nature which
goes beyond the obligations set forth in Rule 1.280(e), Florida Rules of Civil Procedure.

Defendant objects to the production of documents at the offices of plaintiff’s counsel.
Documents will be produced or made available for inspection at a mutually convenient location
in Palm Beach County, Florida or as otherwise agreed to between the parties.

Defendant objects to the definition of “You” or “Your” or “Defendant” to the extent that
it seeks privileged communications with their attorneys and accountants.

Defendant objects to this request to the extent it requires the production of documents in

a manner otherwise as permitted by the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure.

EXHIBIT

t
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DEFENDANTS’ RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION
1. All documents concerning any transfers and/or payments of funds from Sullivan
& Powell/Solutions In Tax to You.

RESPONSE: Defendant has no responsive documents.

2. All documents concerning any transfers and/or payments of funds from Michael
D. Sullivan & Assoc. to You.

RESPONSE: Defendant has no responsive documents.

3. All documents concerning any transfers and/or payments of funds from Michael
D. Sullivan to You.

RESPONSE: Defendant has no responsive documents.

4. All documents concerning any transfers and/or payments of funds from Michael
D. Sullivan & Assoc. to 27 Cliff, LLC.

RESPONSE: See documents attached (Bates stamp# AVELLINO_P&S000692).

5. All documents concerning any transfers and/or payments of funds from Sullivan
& Powell/ Solutions In Tax to 27 Cliff, LLC.

RESPONSE: Defendant has no responsive documents.

6. All documents concerning any transfers and/or payments of funds from Michael
D. Sullivan to 27 CIiff, LLC.
RESPONSE: Defendant has no responsive documents.

7. All documents sent from Sullivan & Powell / Solutions In Tax, Michael D.

Sullivan, and/or Michael D. Sullivan & Assoc. to You.
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RESPONSE: See documents attached (Bates stamp# AVELLINO_P&S000693 —
AVELLINO P&S000709).
8. All documents sent from Sullivan & Powell / Solutions In Tax, Michael D.

Sullivan, and/or Michael D. Sullivan & Assoc. to 27 Cliff, LLC.

RESPONSE: Defendant has no responsive documents.

9. To the extent not already produced in response to a request, all documents
concerning 27 Cliff, LLC.

RESPONSE: Objection. This request seeks personal financial information protected from
disclosure by Florida’s Constitution, which information is irrelevant to this dispute. Subject to
and without waiving such objection, see documents responsive to Request No 4.

10.  All documents concerning the “referral fees” that You identified in Your
Response to Interrogatory No. 12 of Plaintiffs’ First Set of Interrogatories to Defendant Frank
Avellino.

RESPONSE: See document produced in response to Request No. 4 and documents previously
produced in this matter.

11.  All documents concerning the “referral fees” that You identified in Your
Response to Interrogatory No. 24 of Plaintiffs’ First Set of Interrogatories to Defendant Frank
Avellino.

RESPONSE: See response to Request No. 10.
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12.

All documents and communications exchanged between You and any person

identified in response to Interrogatory No. 1 of Frank Avellino’s First Set of Interrogatories that

relate to S&P and/or P&S.

RESPONSE: Defendant has no responsive documents.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 23rd day of April, 2015, the foregoing document is

being served on those on the attached service list by electronic service via the Florida Court E-

Filing Portal in compliance with Fla. Admin Order No. 13-49.
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HAILE, SHAW & PFAFFENBERGER, P.A.
Attorneys for Defendants

660 U.S. Highway One, Third Floor
North Palm Beach, FL. 33408
Phone: (561) 627-8100

Fax: (561) 622-7603
ewoodfield@haileshaw.com
bpetroni@haileshaw.com
eservices@haileshaw.com
syoffee(@haileshaw.com
cmarino(@haileshaw.com

By: __/s/ Gary A. Woodfield
Gary A. Woodfield, Esq.
Florida Bar No. 563102
Susan Yoffee, Esq.
Florida Bar No. 511919




SERVICE LIST

THOMAS M. MESSANA, ESQ.

MESSANA, P.A.

SUITE 1400, 401 EAST LAS OLAS BOULEVARD
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33301
tmessana@messana-Jaw.com

Attorneys for P & S Associates General Partnership

LEONARD K. SAMUELS, ESQ.

ETHAN MARK, ESQ.

STEVEN D. WEBER, ESQ.

BERGER SIGNERMAN

350 EAST LAS OLAS BOULEVARD, STE 1000
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33301
emark@bergersingerman.com
Isamuels@bergersingerman.com
sweber@bergersingerman.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

PETER G. HERMAN, ESQ.

TRIPP SCOTT, P.A.

15™ FLOOR

110 SE 6™ STREET

FORT LAUDERDALE, FL. 33301
pgh@trippscott.com

ele@trippscott.com

Attorneys for Defendants Steven F. Jacob
and Steven F. Jacob CPA & Associates, Inc.

JONATHAN ETRA, ESQ.
MARK F. RAYMOND, ESQ.
SHANE MARTIN, ESQ.
CHRISTOPHER CAVALLO, ESQ.
BROAD AND CASSEL

One Biscayne Tower, 21* Floor
2 South Biscayne Blvd.

Miami, FL. 33131
mraymond@broadandcassel.com
ssmith@broadandcassel.com
ccavallo@broadandcassel.com
jetra@broadandcassel.com
msouza@broadandcassel.com
smartin@broadandcassel.com
msanchez@broadandcassel.com
Attorneys for Michael Bienes
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